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11 May 2000
Ms Helen Donaldson

Secretary

Finance and Public Administration

  References Committee

The Senate

Parliament House

CANBERRA  ACT  2600

Dear Ms Donaldson

Government contracts — notice of motion by Senator Murray

Thank you for your letter of 17 April 2000, which conveys the committee’s invitation to make a submission in connection with its inquiry into the mechanism for accountability to the Senate in relation to government contracts contained in notice of motion no. 249 standing in the name of Senator Murray. I hope that the following observations may be of some use to the committee.

Senator Murray’s motion is designed to give effect to the principle that contracts entered into by departments and agencies of the Commonwealth should be made public unless it can be established that there are legitimate grounds for non-publication. This principle was enunciated to the committee in general terms by the Australian National Audit Office and adopted by the committee in its second report on contracting out of government services in May 1998. 

The proposed motion would not require the publication of the texts of contracts, but would require a list of current contracts, showing the contractors and matters covered by the contracts, to be entered on the Internet, and that entering on the Internet to be notified to the Senate. This would allow the Senate, any of its committees or any member of the public, with the knowledge of the existence of contracts provided by the list, to seek a copy of the text of any contract listed. This proposal is modelled on the Senate's order for the publication on the Internet of lists of files of departments and agencies, which allows the existence of particular files to be known, so that their contents may then be sought. The motion attempts to deal with claims of confidentiality by requiring such claims to be indicated in the published list. The new element proposed by the motion is a requirement that the Auditor-General report within six months on whether each such claim of confidentiality is appropriate. 

These provisions of the motion would provide administrative simplicity compared with any provision that the actual texts of contracts be published or provided to the Senate.

The view that government contracts should generally be made public and that the threshold requirements for any secrecy should be set higher has been widely expressed in recent times. The committee will be aware of the literature on the subject apart from its own reports. I draw attention to a very recent contribution, the report dated March 2000 by the Public Accounts and Estimates Committee of the Victorian Parliament entitled Commercial In Confidence Material and the Public Interest, in which the committee recommended that information about public contracts, more extensive than the information required by Senator Murray’s motion, be published (the relevant recommendations are summarised at pp 115-121 of the committee’s report). I also draw attention to an article entitled “Disclosure and the public interest: confidentiality claims in outsourcing agreements”, by Professor Corcoran and South Australian State Auditor-General MacPherson in the April 2000 issue of the Australian Law Journal.

A slight dissenting note may be found in the report dated August 1998 on the contracting out of government services by the Administrative Review Council. That Council recommended against a “separate disclosure regime” for government contracts on the basis that the cost would not be warranted given that, under the Commonwealth Procurement Guidelines, contracts are notified in the Commonwealth (Purchasing and Disposals) Gazette. The guidelines, however, are formulated and changed at the discretion of the executive government. The Council’s report also recorded that the chief executive of an agency may decide that a contract should not be notified in the Gazette on the basis that it would be exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act. This provision confers a very great power on agencies to keep contracts secret, and there is no provision for review to ensure that the power is not overused. More significant is the fact that the Parliament and the public have no way of becoming aware of the existence of secret contracts.

Senator Murray’s motion would overcome the deficiencies of the current arrangements by providing a mechanism for the notification of confidential contracts and for the scrutiny of such contracts by the Auditor-General. The question is whether this significant advantage is secured at an unwarranted cost, as the Administrative Review Council concluded. The burden imposed upon the Auditor-General, of reporting on every contract in respect of which confidentiality is claimed, would depend on the numbers of contracts which are the subject of such claims. The cost of the additional audit activity would be significant only if there are hundreds or thousands of secret contracts. If that is the case, perhaps the cost should be incurred at least initially to find out about them. I would not have thought that the requirement to maintain the list on the Internet would impose an undue burden on departments and agencies, as they are currently required to maintain such a list, or a similar list, for audit and their own purposes.

I can see no procedural or other difficulties with Senator Murray’s motion.

I would be pleased to enlarge on these observations if the committee so requires.

Yours sincerely

(Harry Evans)
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